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zd RESERVED JUDGNENT

THE EMPLOYMENT TRIBUNALS

BETWEEN

Claimant AND

2203694/2007

| Respondent

Miss L Ladele ' Londoen Borough of Islington
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HELD AT: London Central

30 May 2008
EMPLOYMENT JUDGE: Miss AM Lewzey MEMBERS: MrsD
: ' MrCJ
Appearances
For Claimant: Mr J Dingemans QC of Counsel

For Respondent: NMr A Lynch QC of Counsel

JUDGMENT

The unanimous Judgment of the Tribunal is that:

ON; 20-23 May 2008

L

{in chambers)

May
Storr

()  The complaint of direct discrimination on the grous

and belief succeeds.

ds of religion

(il  The complaint of indirect discrimination on the graugnds of religion
or belief in relation to a provision, criterion or practice that from the

commencement of the Civil Partnership Act 2004

all Registrars

should carry ouf civil partnership ceremonies and registration

dutigs succeeds.

(i) The complaint of harassment under the Employment Equality

(Religion or Belief) Regulations 2003 succeeds.
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(lv) The issue of remedy will be determined at a remedy hearing
listed for 10.00 am on Thursday 25 September 2008 at Victory
House, 30-34 Kingsway, London WC2B 6EX.

m i .
EMP NT JUDGE

RESERVED JUDGMENT SIGNED BY EMPLOYME{NT JUDGE ON
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Case Number:

zd RESERVED JUDGMENT

THE EMPLOYMENT TRIBUNALS

BETWEEN

Claimmant AND

Miss L Ladele

JUDGMENT OF THE EMPLOYMENT TRIBUNA

HELD AT; London Central ON: 20-23 May 2008
30 May 2008

EMPLOYMENT JUDGE: Miss AM Lewzey MEMBERS: MrsD
MrCJ

Appearances

For Claimant: Mr J Dingemans QC of Counsel

For Respondent: Mr A Lynch QC of Counsel
REASONS

1 The Claimant, Miss O L Ladele, worked for the Respondent
of Births, Deaths and Marriages from 1992, She continues 1

Respondent, She presented her claim to the Employment Tribunal on

2203694/2007

| Respondent

London Barough of Islington

{In chambers)

ay
Storr

és a Registrar
o worlk for the

28 November 2007 complaining of discrimination on the grounds of religion

or belief.
The Issues
2 The Issues for determination by the Tribunal are as follows:

2.1 Direct Discrimination Claim

Has the Respondent of persons for whom the Respondg
Respondent, treated Ms Ladele less favourably than it
treat others on the grounds of Ms Ladele’s religion or belig

2.2  Indirect Discrimination Claim

2.2.1 | Has the Respondent applied any provision, crit

ft is liable, ‘the
has, or would,
2

iont or practice

which it has applied equally to persons not of the same religion or

3
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Case Number: | 2203694/2007

belief as Ms Ladele but which put or puts perso s of the same
religion or belief as Ms Ladele at a particular disadvantage when
compared to other persons?

2.2.2 If so, did any provision, criterion or practice put Ms Ladele at that
disadvantage?

2.2.3 If so, can the Respondent show the application pf any relevant
provision, criterion or practice {0 be a proporticnate means of
achieving a legitimate aim?

2.3  Harassment Claim
2.3.1 Did the Respondent engage in unwanted conduct which had

the purpose or effect of either violating Ms Ladele's dignity or

creating an intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or offensive

environment for Ms Ladele, within the meaning iof regulation 5

of the Regulations? '

2.3.2 i so, did the Respondent subject Ms Ladele to that conduct on
the grounds of her religion or balief?

2.4 Remedies

241 {fthe Respondent is liable to the Claimant, what injury to feelings,
if any, has been suffered by the Claimant? 3

2.4.2 What financial loss, if any, has been suffered by the Claimant?
2.4.3 lIs it appropriate to make ary recommendations?

2.5 By agreement the claim of victimisation has been excluded from this
hearing.

We heard evidence from the following witnesses called on behalf of the
Claimant, each of whom gave evidence by msans of a written withess
staternent;-

Ms Ladele the Claimant

Mrs E A Thatcher, Registrar Births, Deaths and Marriages smployed by Kent
County Councik. 'T

Miss A R Streete, Registrar of Births, Deaths and Marri}ages with the
Respondent.

We heard evidence from the following withesses called on behalf of the
Respondent;-

|
|
l
|

v
r
|
H
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The Material Facts

Case Number: | 220369472007

Ms H Mendez-Child, Superintendent Registrar of the Isiington Register Service
(two witness statements).

Mr J Lynch, Head of Democratic Services in fhe Scrutiny and Democratic
Services Division of the Respondent (two witness statements).

Mr D Daniels, Assistant Director of Law {(commercial and envijonment} in the
Legal Division of the Respondent.

Mr B Atsebaha, additional Superintendent Registrar with the Respondent.

Ms L. Round, Director of Corporate Resources of the Respondent;

In addition we had an agreed bundle of documents and whe?re we refer 1o
documents in the bundle it is done by reference to the relevant page number.

6

8

Ms Ladele was employed by the Respondent from 1992, $he became a
Registrar of Birlhs, Deaths and Marriages on 14 November 2002. Registrars
of births, deaths and marriages hold a statutory office appointed and paid
by the relevant local authority, but hold office during the pleasure of the
Registrar General under section 8 of the Registration Services] Act 1953, As
a Registrar Ms Ladele was an office holder and was not an employee of the
Respondent. Ms Ladele was paid by the Respondent and had ta duty to abide
by the Respondent's policies. MHer status changed from 1 December 2007
when, pursuant to the provisions of the Statistics and Registration Act 2007, she
became an employee of the Respondent. Prior to 1 December 2007 the
Respondent had no power to dismiss Ms Ladele.

Ms Ladele is a Christlan. Her unchallenged evidence was that she holds
the orthodox Christian view that marriage is the union of lone man and
one woman for life to the exclusion of all others and that marriage is the God
ordained place for sexual relations. She could not reconcile her faith with taking
an active part in enabling sams sex unions to be formed. She told us thai she
believed this to be contrary to God's insiructions that sexual relations belong
exclusively between a man and a woman within marriage. Paragraph 7 of her
witness statement stated: -

"A civil partnership Is a marriage in all but name. Whetlger or not there
are sexual relations it gives the couple who have entered into it the
same rights and responslbilities as a married couple. Regardiess of my
feelings for the participants (and as a Christian this should only be Icve), |
feel unable to directly facilitate the formation of a union ithat | sirncerely
believe is contrary to God's law. As a matter of conscienge | feel unable
to draw an artificial distinction between civil parinerships that require a
ceremony and those that do not.”

The Civil Partnership Act 2004 came into effect In December 2008 when civil
partnership arrangements were introduced. Civil partnerships were not part of
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the role of Registrar of Births, Deaths and Marriages when Ms Ladele was
appointed. There is a duty on the Respondent as the local aut@ori‘ty to provide
registration services for civil partnership arrangements. Section 29 of the Civil
Partnership Act provides that a registrar is not a civil parinershjp registrar until
he or she is s0 designated.

lslington designaled all of its existing registrars as civil partnership arrangement
reglstrars, Ms Ladele was not asked to consent to this. DuriQ‘g the course of
the hearing, following questions that had arisen during the evidence, a
document was produced purporting to be a Civil Partnership Registrar List
showing that Ms Ladele was appointed on 5 December 2005. Prior fo this
Ms Ladele had seen no documentary evidence of her appointment. The Tribunal
heard evidence from Mrs Thatcher who Is a Registrar of Births, Deaths and
Marriages at Kent County Council, that she was asked to complﬁte a form (page
80A) in which she stated that she did not wish to become an authorised
person and Civil Partnership Registrar. This was dated 15 November 2005.
Mrs Thatcher's evidence was that she had approached Kent County Council
and asked that she should be permitted not to conduct civil parginership unions
because of her religious beliefs as a Christian. Mrs Thatcher qeceived a lefter
from Kent County Council dated 31 October 2005 (pages 854 to 85b). That
letter states: a}

“To summarise your position — KCC is prepared to accept that on
religious grounds you should not be required to be involved in civil
partnership work and duties. You will remain in your pos§ of Registrar of
- Births and Deaths dealing with the registration of births and deaths and
other associated work,  You wili not be required to fake notices or
marriages or conduct or register marriages in Kent approved premises
except In an emergency situation.

You may continue to register and conduct marriage [ceremonies at
approved premises ............ "

Mrs Thatcher also referred us to a registrar In Cornwall who was not required
to undertake civil partnership registration (pages 104a and 181a);

Ms Mendez-Child told the Tribunal that Mr Lynch had been inl touch with the
General Registration Office for advice and that she had spoken to HM Inspecter
of Registration who had drawn her attention to a case in the London Borough
of Newham where the Councit had come to a compromise arrapgement with a
Muslim member of staff who expressed reluctance to conduct ¢ivil partnership
ceremonies. The arrangement was that the member of staff conducted ali the
usual duties of a registrar with the exception that she did not officiale at
civil partnership ceremonies. She did carry out the other duties jof a registrar in

relation to civil partnerships and signings. (Page 98).

received a circular from the General Registration Office indicating that
the Civil Parinership Act was likely to come Into force in 2008.; She spoke to
Ms Round in confidence at a mentoring sesslon advising her pf her religious
beliefs and that she would have difficullies conducting civil partnerships.

Ms Ladele first became of civil partnerships in summer Zrod when she

SE6LLP890E2A6 0L WOdd 88:9T7 Sar2-1Nr-ap
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Ms Mendez-Child recalls that she had an informal meeting with Ms Ladele
in 2003 when Ms Ladele indicated that she did not want to perform civil
‘partnershlp dutles.

Ms Ladele was absent on long-lerm sick leave from May to November 2005,
This was during the period that the Respondent was planning the introduction

of civil partnership arrangements. Training was provided by

the Registrar

General's office but the Registrar General left if to each local
registrar to organise how the new service would be accommodat
Ms Mendez-Child took the decision that civil partnership du
accommodated by the existing staff and that the duties share
all staff members in roughly the same proportion as marriages.!

¢ in the office.
ies should be
d cut amongst
This took into

supetintendent .

account that there was no additional funding for the new service, The
Respondent was invoived in discussions with the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and
Transgender {LGBT Forum) in the preparations for the implerrentation of the
new legistation.

Ms Ladele returned to work in November 2005, initially on a iphgsed return.
The new legisiation came into effect on 5 December 2005 and the first civil
partnership in Islington was entered into on 21 December 2005.

The Respondent operates {wo separate rotas coveririg wedgmgs and civil
partnerships, One is for outside approved venues and the other is for
internal venues within the Respondent's premises. Fees are payatle for
conducting weddings and civil partnerships. Initially Ms Ladele swapped with
her colieagles when she was rostered to work when thete was a civil
partnership. This was an informal arrangement but neither Ms Mendez-Child
nor any of Ms Ladele’s colleagues indicated that there was apy difficulty, At
this time Ms Ladele's duties did not include civil partnerships, Elhe last set of
du‘ties of a registrar having been sent in June 2005. (Page C33).;

On 12 January 2006 Mr Lynch who had only taken up hjs post shortly
before this date was spending time understariding the service. Ms Ladele says
that she raised the question of people not undertaking Cl\€l| partnerships
with Mr Lynch ‘at this time, but he does not recall any conc;ess;ons being
made. The Tribunal noted that in the Claimant's diary (page 43P in manuscript
transcribed at page 450a) for 24 danuary 2006 {here is a note “LL to take
330 notices If CP yell”. Ms Mendez-Child said that the reas an for this was
that Ms Ladele had not been trained in civil partherships. e did not find
this evidence particularly convincing since the training was t be cascaded
down and clearcut recollections were not avallable.

In early 2006 two other members of staff, Fatima, and Theresa Davies raised
difficulties with civil partnerships. Ms Davies shared the same rellgious belief
as Ms Ladele. Fatima had religious difficulties, although her theological base
was Muslim. Fatima was a sessional worker, She was offered tpe comprorise
of not performing ceremanies but having to register partnerg,hlps She felt
unable to accept this and as a result left the Respondent's ser\ngce Ms Davies
is referred to in the notes of a one-fo-one meeting between Mg Mendez-Child
and Mr Lynch on 27 February 2006 {page 107a). Ms Davies was offerad the
compromise of a demotion, although at the same rate of pay, to the post of

S66.88988006 101
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receptionist so that she would not have to conduct civil parinerships. She
agreed fo this.

A team meeting took place on 20 March (page 450a). Those present were
Ms Mendez-Child and other staff. Ms Ladele mentioned her opposition to
conducting civil partnerships and notes in her diary "Al called meidiscriminatory”.
in Ms Mendez-Child’s witness statement at paragraph 30 she states:

“This is probably true in that | certainly did and do have concerns that
a refusal to participate in clvil partnerships because of sexual orientation
of the couples can be discrimination.”

At a one-to-one meeting between Ms Mendez-Child and | Mr Lynch on
28 March 2006 (page 112a to 112b) it is recorded:

"John advised that Dion and Viktoria had both been taisee him about
Lillian and Theresa still not doing any of these and ’chey were feeling
victimised because of this.

John asked Helen fo urgently meet with both Lillian qnd Theresa to
explain the situation and advise them that If they refust to do these
duties we . would take disciplinary action against them; Johh advised
Helen to have Karen in the roem as a witness to wha was said and
take notes of the meeting.

Helen advised that she weas still o speak to Fatima on the issue and
she had not resigned yet."

Dion and Viktoria were gay members of staff.

On 28 March 2006 Ms Mendez-Child met both Theresaz and Ms Ladele
separately. The notes are at page 112d. Ms K Kaines, additional [Superintendent
Registrar also attended the meeting. Ms Mendez-Child explained that by
avoiding carrying out civil partnership duties Ms Ladele could be jn breach of the
Council's Dignity for Al policy. Ms Mendez-Child gave Ms Lads|e a copy of the
policy and a copy of the Respondent’'s Code of Conduct for employees and
the disciplinary and misconduct procedures (pages 465, 488, 4 ’l to 464). The
note of the meeting (page 112d fo &) states:

“Lillian made what she claimed was a counter-complaint that she also
was being discriminated, bullied and harassed at work. Her dignity was
not being respected and her religious beliefs Werei & cause for
discrimination against her. She accuséd me of treating her unfairly in
comparison to the treatment of other staff, ........... gl

She also pointed out that a year before CP became law she had told -

me that she was not going to do civil partnership and that] therefore | had
known that she was not going to do them. Then she ended the meeting
by stating that she was not going to change her religious beliefs and
was not going to do civil parinerships and that she would fight any
disciplinary action.”

S66/.05980246 01 IWOMd 60197 8AEE-TN0-60
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By a letter dated 1 April 2008 from Ms Mendez-Child to Ms Ladgle, Ms Mendez-
Child wrote to conflrm the details of the mesting of 29 March, The letter states

from the third paragraph onwards:

Ms Ladele did not sign and return the copy of the letter.

"[ explained that by refusing to do any work, which irelated to civil
partnerships you were potentially in breach of the Code ofiConduct.

| also explained that your actions if you were to refuse tq underizke any
work in respect of civil partnerships, could be seen as & failure ‘1o treat
all members of the community and other employees fai;!y and equally,
regardless of their sex, race, coiour, national or ethnic grigin, sexuality,
religion, age, disability or marital status' and this could: be considered
gross misconduct. In this case vou might also be suzbject to formal
disciplinary action. ‘

| have agreed that @as a temporary measure in view [of your stated
religious objections {o civil partnerships the Council would; not at this time
ask you to participaie directly or officiate at civil partnerships ceremonies.

However you are expected to perform ali other duties hich arise from
and are related to civil partnerships. This work could inclyde officiating at
chvil partnership signings where no ceremony was required.

You should be aware however that this arrangement cap only continue
aslong as there are no service delivery implications jand it will be
subjectto review. The Council reserves the right to request you to
perform all the duties of your employment, inciuding ol%‘iciating at civil
partnership ceremonies and signings should the need| for you to do
this wark become apparent or necessary in the future.

Please confirm that you will be performing the full duties of your
employment by signing and retuming to me the attached copy of this
letter.” '

Ms Ladele responded by letter of 18 April 2006 {(pages 118-119) in which she

states:

8664089388286 101

“Thank you for your letter of 1 April which was given to me on 3 April. |
have been given no option other than set out in the letter but | am unable
to sign the Isiter.

Although you are aware of my views concerning civil partperships f think
it is important to provide a formal record of my concems.

I strongly belleve that marriage is the unity of one
woman for life to the exclusion of all others. This is a

informed by my faith as Christian. The Civil Partnershiﬁ

marn and one
position that is
Act gives any

couple who have entered into a clvil parthership the s?'me rights and

9
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responsibiliies as a married couple. It has been described as a marriage
in all but name and this is a view which that is difficult to argue against.

For someone who believes that a relationship (and jpy extension a
marital relationship) between same sex couples is wrong in God's law, to

have to act contrary to that law by facilitating it to happeq
0

creates a huge

of the Council. |

dilemma for me. | can honour my faith or the demands
appreciate that the law condones such relationshipsi by association
with the Civil Partnership Act and that my position may set me aside from
others ........

It is not my position to judge people and | hope my service will have
demonstrated that In terms of customer care. | give every individual my
full attention, compensation and professional service regardless of their
situations, religious nationality, race, disability or sexual persuasion.

I hope that you feel able to consider the difficulties | fage and carefully
and fully consider what can be done to accommodate my concems so
that ] can continue to both work and honour my Christian faith.

Islington prides itself on actively promoting diversity and | place my hope
and my posltion as a minority therefore being viewed and addressed
as sympathetically as difficuities faced by others ............

Vs Ladele received no reply to this letter. No comment was madg. Ms Mendez-

Child referred the letter to Mr Lynch who took no further action, Ms Mendez-
Child told us in hsr evidence that she did not think it necessary to reply, In
cross-examination Mr Lynch considered that, in retrospect, a reply should have
been sent. ‘ E

The informal arrangements concerning the rota continued with Ms Meridez-
Child's knowledge. However there were tensions within the department,
particularly with Dion and Viktoria, At an office staff meeting pf 6 July {page
128) the issues of civil partnarships was raised. It is recorded: |

“Has there baen any update on the civil partnership? Theresa has
taken herself off (sic) the rota, Lillian is different as she i$ senior officer,
therefore has a different contract. it is all being considered by HR."
We have Ms Ladele’'s diary enfries at page 450a over the! course of the
summer referring fo poor treatment. This was denied by Ms! Mendez-Child.
However we accept that the diary entries were contemporaneous,

On 18 October 2006 Ms Ladele complained to Ms Mendez;Child that she
had not been receiving support from the team and was unwilling 10 ask for help.

A team meeting took place on 2 November 2006. ftem 4 on the Agenda
{page 136} is: '

“What is happening with pgople who do not wish to do civil partnerships?”

10
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The minutes at pages 137-140 state:

“For Civil Partnerships

It was brought up again that there appears to be no further action being
taken about the members of staff who refuse to do ci\ﬂﬂii partnerships.
Helen confirmed that the people in question had been taken off of the
week day and weekend rotas for room 99 and therefgre the Council
changed. They are still however on the rota for outside venues. On this
rota it will be that if they are next on the allocation tist and it is for 2 CP
then they will be missed out and not reallocated the next hedding. They
are in effect to 'miss a turn'. With Theresa now on reception it may avoid
the possibility of her being called as a week day RM. r

John said that as long as we are under the control of GRO then things
would remain the way they are. Once we become part of the local
authority and we become local Government employees and conform to
local Government guidelines then the way things are [heing handled

will change. -

Litlan announced to everyone that she was the other person that refused
1o do CPs and is most upset that no one has come fo herjand asked her
her views. She said that she feels victimised and also clgims that she is
picked on a daily basis and that no one at all respects her religious
beliefs.

Dion followed up Lillian's statement by saying that because of her and
her views he feels like a second class citizen and that it i$ gay people in
general that she is discriminating against. Me asked why she hadn't had -
enough respect to {alk {o the gay people in the office gnd explain her
views to them as Theresa had done. Lillian then said thaf it wasn't up to
her to come 1o them but them to come fo her. She said that this issus
wasn't about anyone else but her and discrimination gf her religious
beliefs and that she was only responsible fo her manager and nobody
glse, John and Helen were told of her views.” :

In evidence Ms Ladele told us thet she had been very upset at the meeting and
that she felt unsupported by management and isolated.

By a letter dated 14 Nove}nber 2006 Dion Goncalves and kaktoria Kingsley
wrote to Ms Mendez-Child complaining that certain member§ of staff were

refusing to do civil partnerships and referring to the Dignity for All policy. The
letter states: ‘

“The Dignity for All states that Islington is committed jto equality for
everyone. Everyone expecits to be treated with respect af all times
regardless of age, colour, disability, gender, faith, religion, rnationality,
race, sexuality, marital status, HIV or other health status,

This is not the case in our Department and we believe that Lillian and
Theresa are discriminating against the gay community with their refusal

11
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Ms Mendez-Child referred the letter to Mr Lynch.

S66.08900206 101
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to do civil partnerships. Thisis an act of homophobia and as members of
the gay community we are not comforfable with this sitlation and feel
strongly that we are being discriminated against. We ask that something
constructive be done 1o rectify this and bring the services that we provide
in line with the dignity for all policy.

We would like to know exactly what is happening and pring this to a

mutual acceptable conclusion. We ask that by 30 November we have in

writing how this matter is going to be resclved.”

Mr Lynch wrote back to Dion and Viktoria on a confidential basjs (pages 145-
1486} on 15 November 2008, by return of post, The letter states;

*I trust that you will treat this in confidence as It contains personal
information ¢concerning staff ...... | advise that | wish to t?ke disciplinary
action against any staff who refuses to undertake these duties for the
reasons that you have already oullined. | was advised by GRO that |
would be unsuccessful in action taken against Lillian as she was a
statutory officer and as clvil partnerships were never part of her original
duties and not part of her confract of employment that she has signed.
Until she transfers fo local authority control from the Registrar General
there is little | can do.

The situation was different in relation to Theresa as she did not have
statutory protection and the GRO with support actiop being taken
against her.

As part of the attendance monitoring procedures that || was following
with respect to Theresa's sickness absence | made it perfectly clear that
if she refused to carry out civll parinership duties | would take disciplinary
action against her which could ultimately result in her dismissal ........
Helen and | will also be speaking to Lillian direct conceminp the effect her
actions are having on both her colleagues and the runningiof the office.”

Dion Goncalves and Viktoria Kingsley wrote back immediately fto John by an
undated letter (page 147) and state: [

it include any increment/payments that fall under the {local authority
pay scaie and that is in the hands of the local authority. We asked this as
we feel more work i now falling on colleagues and I[his should be
reflecied on her salary.

“"Our queries whether the pay that Lillian receives is statutTry pay or does

B T g

We were wondering if it would be possible for you to investigate the
validity of re-aligning the salary received to reflect the purely statutory
nature of the post she is now fulfilling ......... !

In cross-examination Mr Lynch said that he did go to talk to Dign and Vikioria
to say that he wouid not take any action regarding pay. He told the Tribunal that

12
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he did not say that they were discrimminating against Ms Lade Je because of
her religious beliefs.

At a one-to-gne with Mr Lynch and Ms Mernidez-Child on 21

gcember il is
recorded:
“Lillian had been somewhat hostile and aggressive with I-gefen She had
tried to deal with the issue of the atmosphere in the office over Lillian's
discrimination of other staffs but did not accept that there was a problem.”

On 17 January 2007 Ms Ladele went to see Mr Lynch initially co
issues but the discussion Included the issue of civil partnerships.

neerning heaith
At the meeting

Ms Ladels raised allegations of being unfairly treated and Mr Lynch indicated

that members of staff had spoken to him abaut her attitude.
first occasion when Ms Ladele was aware of this. The notes
{pages 153-154} record:

This was the
of the meeting

*| advised Lillian that a number of people have been to) see me about

issues in the office and that is why | wanted staff to raise

hese with Miffa

so we could deal with them now and | needed thelr help as couldn't

" resolve the problems with their help.

| asked Lillian whether the job was still right for her given her health

problem. She said that she had thought about looking

2002 and it was investigated and since then Helen

for other work.

had held this

She mentioned that she had complained about Helen ancg her attitude in

against her.
had put this on the staff survey. | advised Lillian that she

She had told Hslen she felt verbally abus'ed by her and

eeded to take

these issues forward by way of complaints so that they could be
investigated and deait with.

I also advised her about the CP issues and that when she transferred
to local authority control the Council would not accept ther views that
she did not agree with CPs as this direct discrimination and against
the staff code and the Council's Dignity for All policy. The Council would
take disciplinary action against her which couid ultimately lead o her
dismissal,

| advised that the gay and lesbian staff in the office had felt directly
discriminated by her actions. Again, | wanted these issups dealt with at
the away day.”

A Registrar's Service Away Day was held on 22 February 2007. The issue
of civil partnerships was raised, together with team building gxercises. The
minutes appear at pages 162-167. At page 166 in relation to civil partnerships
it states that Mr Lynch stated:

“LB lslington is currently in discussion with GRO in felation to this
issue since affording staff discretion is to not undertake civil partnerships
would be coritrary to Council's dignity for all policy and; the staff code

of conduct and is direct discrimination in the view of Islington.

13
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The outcomies of these discussions will be communicated to LL as the

member of the team most directly affected in the next
cascaded down fo ail staff thereafter.”

0 weeks and

We accept from Mr Lynch's evidence that the away day was ohe of his ways

of resolving the difficulties concerning civil partnerships and
building.

. general team

By May 2007 the atmosphere in the office had deteriorated. Mﬂr Lynch toid us
that Dion and Viktoria had made further complaints saying that status quo in

which Ms Ladele was refusing to involve herself in any

parinerships was not sustainable and that ali staff needed to

way  with  civil
be performing

all the duties. Mr Lynch states at paragraph 30 of his witness stafement:

"Quite apart from the issue of principle in terms of the Claimant

performing her duties and refusing to provide service

5 because the

recipients were homosexual, her refusal did mean that others had

1o perform exira duties and cause rota difficulties.”

Mr Lynch decided to instigate the disciplinary process against

Ms Ladele. At

the beginning of May he asked Mr Daniels to conduct a prelimingry investigation
inte & complaint that Ms Ladele had refused to undertake the prq;c'essing of civil
partrierships. Mr Daniels wrote to Ms Ladels on 3 May 2007 adyising her of the
investigation and indicating that as a result he might clte to referithe matter to &

disciplinary hearing {page 181).
The interview with Ms Ladele took place on 23 May 2007.

accompanied by two friends Mr Hobbins and Ms Igoh. Ms Ladel

a statement (page 261-262) which was read out.

s Ladele was
e had prepared

Mr Daniels interviewed Mr Lynch on 20 June (pages 202-204) apnd Ms Mendez-

Child on 27 June {pages 205-208). At the investigatory meeting
Mr Lynch said (page 200): '

"John said that if this was the case they should go to

with Mr Lynch,

ork in anothar

Borough. John commented that Lillian's people skills wgre not brilliant
and if she wishes to Jeave he could come to an agreement with her. If

“not, claims could be brought in by her two colleagues who

-are gay.”

This version was changed six weeks later by Mr Lynch and we have the

changed version at page 203. In the changed version states:
"Further comment was made about how GRO would deal
if other Boroughs were dealing with it differently. John sa
to each Superintendent Registrar to decide how to deal wi

The explanation for the change, given in cross-examination by

with this matter
d that it was up
th the issue.”

Mr Lynch, was

that he was not sent the minutes and only became aware i[rm August when

Ms Ladele said to him she was surprised at his comments, as 2
he asked for the minuies {0 be changed. The Tribunal found thi

14
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It is noted that Mr Lynch conceded that at that time civil partner_ship ceremonies
were not part of Ms Ladele's job description.

37 At Mr Danisls’ investigator\} meeting with Ms Mendez~£3hﬂd (page 205)
reference is made to a maternity leave post as Deputy Superintendent
Registrar. it is recorded: f

"Helen stated that the post will be advised but will not éccepﬁ Lillian's
application should she wish to apply.”

Later on it is stated:

“The training for civil partnership ceremonies was only given fo certain
staff and was then cascaded down to other staff. Extensjve training was
not required as the Registrars were familiar with marriage;and citizenship
ceremoriies and their registration.”

The Tribunal noted that this did not sit easily with Ms Mendez-Child's evidence
in rejation fo 24 January 2006 when she said that the reason that Ms Ladele
should “yell” was because she had not been trained In civil partnerships. ;

Later on In the investigatory rote at page 207 it states:

"Helen contacted the Regisirar General Inspector for advi
the prablem and was told that Lillian could be allowed
certain civil partnership duties. Helen has a duly to her
does not want someone who does not wish to pa

e to get around
ict 0 carry out
customers and
icipate in civil

partnership duties ....... Other Boroughs have brought in different staff o
carry out this type of work."

The investigatory interview concludes at page 208:
“The two gay members have gone to the Leshbian] Gay Bisexual

Transgender Forum to explain what is happening in [the office and
how will it be dealt with.

Everyone is in agreement to do partnerships except fqr Theresa and
Lilllan. Lillian carries out citizenship ceremonies, nanﬁaing cergmony,
renewal of vows and she has not compiained that they are not in her
original job description.”

38  Mr Daniels produced his investigatory report at pages 210-223 dated 28 July
2007. He recommends that a formal complaint be brought against Ms Ladele
under the Council's Discipline, Misconduct and Council Convictions procedurs
in respect of the complaint:

“That on or from 16 April 2006 you have failed to comply W‘th paragraphs
4.6 and 4.7 of the Council's Code of Conduct for employees and
Council's equalily and diversity policy 'Dignity for All' by refusing to carry
out work in retation 1o the civil partnership service solelyjon the grounds
of sexual orientation of the customers of that service."

15
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This is recorded in Mr Daniels’ letier of 3 August 2007 to Ms Ladele. He states
that the hearing wili take pilace before Ms Round, Directog of Corporate

Resources.

39  The disciplinary hearing tock place on 16 August 2007 before Ms Round.
Ms Ladele was accompanied by Mr M Jones her representatives The minutes
appear at pages 246-252r. Mr Daniels opened the hesaring by qﬁ'utting his case
to Ms Round and was cross-examined by My Jones. Evidence was heard from
Ms Mendez-Child. Ms Round adjourned the hearing until 5] September in
order to hear from Mr Lynch and the Claimant. At the end of tl]"e hearing both
Mr Jones and Mr Danleis made closing submissions. in crogs-examination
Ms Mendez-Child (page 252m) stated:

‘| don't believe that we should be accommodating pecple’s religious
beliefs in the Registry Service.”

40 Ms Round wrote to Ms Ladele on 13 September by a letter at pages 329-331
ofthe bundle. She set out her findings, reiterated the offer that Ms Ladsle
should not be required to conduct ceremonies, bul would Be required to
undertake straightforward signings of the Register and administrative work in
relation to civil partnerships. She also states: '

“Should you choose not to sign the new job descriptign the Coungil
would have to seriously consider its position and one possibie autcome
would be that your contract of employment would be terminated.”

Her final sentence reads:

“However I'm quite clear that | will not {olerate behaviour lf'vi‘ths‘n the team
which isolates any particular individual for whatever reason and will be
asking John Lynch to discuss the matter with Helen Mendez-Child and
the rest of the team to ensure there is no behaviour of hif sought in the
forthcoming months,”

Ms Round accepted in her letter that there was no evidence tlglat the service
could not be delivered in practical terms without Ms Ladele’s assistance.

Ms Ladele did not appeal against the outcome,

In cross-examinatlon Ms Round agreed that a possible consequence of
Ms Ladele losing these proceedings is that she will be sacked.

41 With effect from 1 December 2007 Ms Ladele became an employee of the
Respondent.

42  The Respondén't’s Dignity for All policy is set out at pages 489:511. At page
498 the policy reads; ‘ '

“It is the Council's policy that everyone should be treated fairly and
without discrimination. Islington aims to ensure that

16
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v Staff experience fairmess and equity of treatment in the
workplace.

« Customers recelve fair and equal access to Coungil Services.

» Staff and customers are treated with dignity and respect.

» The Council will aclively remove discrimina‘torgy barriers that
can prevent people from obtaining the employment opportunities
and services o which they are entitled. The Council will not
folerate processes, attitudes and behaviour that amount to
discrimination including narassment, victimisatign and bullying
through prejudice, ignorance, thoughtlessness and stereo-typing
.......... All employees are expected to promote these values
al all times and to work within the policy, Emp.[pyees found to
be in breach of this policy may face disciplinary action.”

The policy goes on at page 487 to set out what managers will do to comply
with the policy which includes:

» ‘make clear to staff that discrimination is unacceptf‘nble and that it
will be treated as a serlous matter and a disciplinary offence.

s Deal promptly and thoroughly with any complaint of discrimination
Including harassment, victimisation and bullying i~ all incidents
must be recorded.” ' '

Faith and religion is covered at page 504 and reads:

“Some faith communities suffer discrimination and prejudice due to
their beliefs and appearance. From 2 December 2003 jnew legislation
has been enacted outlawing discrimination on grounds [of religion and
belief in the areas of employment and training.” ‘

Subnmissions

43  The Tribunal had comprehensive skeleton arguments from Mr A Lynch QC
on behaif of the Respondent, and Mr Dingemans QC on behalf of the Claimant.
Since the submissions are in writing it is unnecessary for us fo repeat them
and we deal with the submisslons at the relevant point in our conclusions.
To avoid confusion with Mr Lynch, the witness for the Respondent, we refer to
Mr A Lynch QC, Counsel for the Respondent, as Mr A Lynch In ol-_lr conclusions.

The Complaint of Direct Diserimination on Grounds of Religion or Belief

The Law

44  Regulation 3(1)a) of the Employment Equality (Religion or Belief) Régulatjons
2003 provides: ‘

17
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“For the purposes of these regulations a person “AY discriminates
against another person “B” if ~ :

(@) On the grounds of religion or belief A treats B less
favourably thar he treats or would treat other persons.”

Regulation 10(3) provides:

“It is unlawful for a relevant parson in relation to a personiwho has been
appointed in office or post to which this regulation appliesito discriminate
against him —
{d) By subjecting him to any other detriment injrelation to the
appointment.” '

Regulation 6(1)(c) provides the sarme situation in relation to emplgyment.

Regulation 29(2) provides:

“Where on the hearing of the complaint the complainant proves facts
frorn which the tribunal could apart from this regulations conclude in
the absence of an adeguate explanation that the Respondent:

(a) has commifted against the complaint an act ic which Regulation
28 applies or

{b) is by virtue of Regulation 22 (liability of employers or principles)
or 23 aiding unlawful acts (lo be treated as having committed against
the cormplainant such an act.

The Tribunal shall uphold the complaint unless the Hespondent proves
that he did not commit or as the case may be is notjto be treated
as having committed that act.” :

Mr Dingemans has referred us to B (Willlarnson) -v- _S_gyreta;x’ of State for
Education and Employment [2005] UK HL 15 in which Lord Micholls, at
paragraph 22, stated:

. "It is necessary first to clarify the couri’s roles in identify;ing a religious
belief calling for protection under Articls 9 ........ The coupt is concerned
to ensure an assertion of religious belief is made In good faith: ‘neither
felicitous, nor capricigus and that it is not an artifice’ to adopt the felicitous
phrase of lacobucci J in the decision of its Supreme COUI;I of Canada in
Syndicat Northerest -v- Amselem [2004] 241 DLR (4’“)51, 27 para 52.
But, emphatically, it is not for the court to embark on apy enquiry into
the asserted belief or judge its ‘validity' by some objective standards
such as the source material upon which the claimant founds his belief
or the orthodox teaching of the religion in question or the extent to which
the claimant's belief confirms to or differs from the views of others
professing the same religion”,

18
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it has not been suggested otherwise, and the Tribunal acceptsithat Ms Ladele
held her religious beiief in good faith,

46

47

The detriments that the Claimant relies on are set out in a dogument entitied
Claimant’'s list of issues at paragraphs 14-25. The parties agreg that the issue
at paragraph 25 is not being litigated in the present proce?dings and the

Tribunal has not determined it. The Tribunal must undertake jan gxercise of

considering each of these detriments in turn and then copsidering them
cumulatively in accordance with the guidance in Anya -v- Unlversity of Oxford
[2001] ICR 847.

The Tribunal is also mindful of the guidance in relation tq discrimination
cases set out in the annex to gen Ltd -v- Wong [2005] ICR 931 which, for the
sake of good order is set out below:

(1) Pursuant to section 63A of the SDA, it is for the claimant whio complains of
sex discrimination to prove on the balarnce of probabilities facts|from which the
tribunal could conciude, in the absence of an adequate explapation, that the
respondent has committed an act of discrimination agalnst the claimant
which is unfawful by virfue of Part I or which by virtue of s. 41jor s. 42 of the
EDA is to be treated as having been committed against the claimant. These are
referred to below as "such facts”.

(2) If the claimant does not prove such facts he or she will fail,

{3) It is iImportant to bear in mind in deciding whather the claimant has proved
such facts that it is unusual to find direct evidence of sex discgimination. Few
empioyers would be prepared to admit such diserimination, even to themselves.
In some cases the discrimination will not be an intention but merely based

on the assumption that "he or she would not have fitted in®.

{(4) In deciding whether the claimant has proved such facts, itiis important to
remember that the outcome at this stage of the analysis by 5he tribunal will
thersfore usually depend on what inferences it is proper to draw from the
primary facts found by the iribunal.

(B) it is important to note the word "could” In 5. 63A(2). At this stage the tribunal
does not have to reach a definitive determination that such factsjwouid lead it to

the conclusion that there was an act of unlawful discrimination.

At this stage a

fribunal is looking at the primary facts before it to see what inferences of

secondary fact could be drawn from them:

(8) In considering what inferences or conclusions can be drawn ft

facts, the tribunal must assume that there is no adequate expla
facts.

‘om the primary
nation for those

(7) These inferences can include, in approprlate cases, any Inferences that it
(

is just and equitable to draw in accordance with section 74(2)
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from an evasive or equivacal reply to a questionnaire or any
that fall within section 74(2) of the SDA.

(8) Likewise, the tribunal must decide whether any provision
code of practice is relevant and if so, take it into account in d
facts pursuant to section 56A(10) of the SDA. This means that
also be drawn from any failure to comply with any relevant code

| 2203694/2007

pther questions

of any relevant
termining, such
inferences may
of practice,

(9) Where the claimant has proved facts from which conclusions could be
drawn that the respondent has treated the claimant less fa\?burably on the

ground of sex, then the burden of preof moves to the respondent

(10) It is then for the respondent ic prove that he did not commit, or as the

case may be, is not to be treated as having committed, that act. |

{11) To discharge that burden it is necessary for the responde

nt to prove, an

the balance of probabilities, that the treatment was in no sense whatsoever

on the grounds of sex, since "no discrimination whatsoever® is
the Burden of Proof Directive.

{12) That requires a iribunal to assess not merely whether the
proved an explanation for the facts from which such inference
but further that it is adequate to discharge the burden of proof or
probabilities that sex was not a ground for the treatment in questi

{13) Since the facts necessary 0 prove an explanation would

pompalible with

espondent has

; can be drawn,
1 the balance of
on.,

‘normally be in

the possession of the respondent,” a tribunal would normally: expect cogent
evidence to discharge that burden of proof. In particular, the tribunal will need
to sxamine carefully expianations for failure fo deal with the questionnaire
pracedure andfor code of practics.

Mr Dingemans has referred us to Kokkinakis -v- Gresce [1993] 17 EHRR 397
as follows:

“Freedom of thought, conscience and religion is one of the foundations
of a democratic society’ within the meaning of the Convention. ltis, in its
religious dimension one of the most vital elements that 9o to make up
the identity of believers and of thelr conception of life ..... .. the pluralism
indissociable from a democratic soclety which has been dearly won
over the centuries, depends on it. While religious freedom is primarily
a matter of conscience ft also implies, inter alia, freedpm to manifest
oneg’s religion," '

Mr A Lynch for the Respondent argued that Keokkinakls was! distinquishable
as it related to a Jehovah's Witness.

We have been referred to R (Amicus) -v- Secretary of State for Trade and
Industry and Christian_Action Research Education [2004) IRLR 430.

Mr Dingemans accepts, on behalf of the Claimant, that there are important
rights of members of the lesbian, gay and bisexual community which are
engaged In the area of provision of goods and services addressed by the
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Regulations. He notes that Richards J at paragraph 27 of the Amicus decision
noted that:

"Sexual orlentation is the most intimate aspect of private life and personal
identity. 1 is protected under the Convention, in particular under Articles
8 and 14, the application of which is considered later irf this judgment.
The Convention case law also shows that weighty reasops are required
to justify any intefference with the individual's Conventign rights riot to
be discriminated against on grounds of sexual origntation. !

Mr A Lynch argued that this did not assist the present case. Nr A Lynch has
dargued that the Respondent required all its existing Registrars to be Civil
Parthership Registrars and involved in the civll partnership sewi?e and that was
not required of Ms Ladele because of her religious views, ke argues that
Islington cannot be held liable for direct discrimination because the requirement
that Ms Ladele be involved in the provision of the civil partnership service was
not imposed because of, on the basis of or on the grounds of her holding her
rellgious based view, He argued that the rule applied equaily gto all registrars
and Ms Ladele was not in any way at all singled out in that regar;'d, nor were her

. religious views in any way connected to that decision by the Respondent.

This is & case where there is a direct conflict between the legislative protection
afforded to religion or belief and the legislative protection afforded to sexual
orientation. Ms Ladele accepts that there are imporiant riqhts under the
European Convention on Human Rights of members of the Ie;:bian, gay and
bisexual community which are engaged in the area of goodf and services
addressed by the Employment Equality {Sexual Orientation) Regulations 2003.
Ms Ladele does not seek 1o undermine those rights. Equally, ﬁl\!ls Ladele has
Convention rights on the grounds of her religion or belief as a Fhrisﬁanr which
are engaged by the Employment Equality (Religion or Belief) Reguiations 2003.
Both sets of rights are protected, One set of rights cannot override the other
set of rights. T

Article 17 of the European Convention on Human Rights pmvide?:

“Nothing in the Convention may be interpreted as impiyiqg for any state,
group or person any right to engage in any activity or gerform any act
aimed at the destruction of any of the rights and freedoms|set forth herein
or at their limitation to a greater extert than is provided for in the
Convention.”

in R (Amicus) -v- Secretary of State for Trade and Industrg and Christian

Action Research Education [2004) IRLR 430 Richards J iconsidered the
striking of a balance between competing rights. 1n that cas¢ the claimants
sought, unsuccessfully, to challenge the exceptions to the Employment Equality
(Sexual Orientation} Regulations 2003 which benefited religious organisations
to appoint persons holding only the relevant religlous belief and without
which the right would have been excluded by the rights of the lesbian, gay,
hisexual and transsexual community. Richards J accepted, atj paragraph 123
of the judgment, that;
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“The exception involves the legislative striking of the balance between
competing rights. It was done deliberately in this way so ag to reduce the
issues that would have to be determined by courts or tribunals in such
a sensitive field. As a matter of principle that was a cpurse properly
opened fo the legislature ,...... | think i clear that a requirgement meeting
ithe conditions pursues a legitimate aim. In additioni should it be
necessary | would rely here on what | say later in this judgment about

the protection of religious rights and freedoms as a justification for
interference with rights under Article 8 of the Convention.”

Mr A Lynch, for the Respondent, argued that the adversa treatment fo
Ms Ladele was not on the grounds of her religion or belief. He{submitted that
the Respondent required all its existing Registrars to be Civil Partnership
Registrars and that the rule applied equally to all Registrars so that
Ms Ladele was not singled out. Mr A Lynch argued that Ms Lagele's orthodox
Christian views were unconnected to the Respondent's decisjon. We reject
this submission. The argument goes to the burden of proof. Applying a rule to
all Registrars does not mean that the Respondent has demonstrated that it did
not commit an act of discrimination. We analyse the acts complained of below.

The Tribunal accepts the submission of Mr Dingemans that it Wpuid be wrorg
for one set of rights to “trump” another. The present dispute arisgs from a direct
conflict between the rights of one protected group with the rights of another
protected group. It is an important case which may have a widﬁ_ r impact than
the dispute belween the parties. The Tribunal has borne these matters in mind
in reaching its conclusions on the individual detriments and their cumulative
effect which were referred o in paragraph 46 above. '

The first detriment relied upon is: _
"(14) Sharing details of its actions and proposed actions with other staif
in breach of the Claimant's right of confidentiality under ‘th% Respondent’s
Confidentiality Policy in November 2006 and failing to redress the further
breach of confidentiality by members of staff who procgeded to share
this same confidential information in the Respondent's LGBT Forum in

November 2008."

Paragraph 17.1 of the Respondent’'s Code of Conduct for Employees {page
454} provides:

“Managers must make sure that they have secure systems in their
workplace to safeguard confidential information and that their staff
maintain confidentiallty at all times. They must also cgmply with the
Council's policies and practices under the Data Protection Act 1988."

The letter from Mr Lyneh to Dion and Viktoria dated 15 Novembgr 2008 (pages
145-1485) specifically states that it is private and confidential and must be freated
in confidence as it contains personal information concerning staff,é This amounts
to a breach of the Respondent's confidentiality policy. Mr Lynch conceded in
cross-examination that it was term and condition of emploympnt of all staff
thatthey should not disclose private information about ore member of
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staff to other members of staff. He conceded that he did this
he asked Dion and Viktoria to treat the matter as confidential,

220369472007

and this is why
Ms Ladele has

therefore suffered a detriment. The allegation that this was disclosed to the

LGBT Forum is confirmed in the investigatory meeting between

Mr Daniels and

that they did not commit the act.

Ms Mendez-Child (page 208) where it is stated:

“The two gay members have gone fo the LGBT (Lesbiah Gay Bisexual
and Transgender) Forum to explain what is happening in the office and
how it will be dealt with.”

The Tribunal is satistied that a detriment has been suffered by Ms Ladele.

In relation to this detriment (14) Ms Ladele has demonstrated that she did
suffer a detriment. Ms Ladele compares herself with another hypothetical office
holder or employse who is protected by the Council's Dignity far All policy. I
the alternative, she compares herself with a hypothetical Regisirar of orthodox
Jewish faith who felt unable to work on Saturdays., and, [‘in the second
alternative, Regulation 3 being to -protect freedom of religion and freedom of
expression, no comparator is necessary. It ls sald that a comparator, who was
a hypothetical office holder protected by the Dignity for Ali paiicy, who relied
on anather ground of disctimination would not have been treated in the same
way. The evidence the Tribunal has before it was that the Respondent acted
swiftly in dealing with the complaints of discrimination on the grounds of sexual
crientation by Dion and Viktoria. Their complaint was dated 14! November and
the response dated 15 November. Against that background the Tribunal could
infer that Ms Ladele had been freated less favourably on the grounds of
her religion or bslief and, therefore, it is for the Respondenf to show they
did not commit these acts. On the evidence before the Triprnal, Mr Lynch
has conceded that he did breach Ms Ladele’s right of confidentiality and
the evidence before the Tribunal from the investigatory nhueet'ing is that
the confidential information was passed to the LGBT Farum. In these
circumstances the unanimous judgment of the Tribunal is {that the claim
of discrimination on the grounds of religion or belief succeeds in relation

to point (14),
The second detriment is:

"(15) Subjecting the Claimant to a disciplinary process from May
2007 onwards.” :

The reason for the disciplinary process was the refusal by Ms Ladele to
carry out work in relation to the Civil Partnership Service solelyjon the grounds
of the sexual orientation of the customers of that service. The reason that
Ms Ladele refused to camry out ¢ivil partnership work was because of her
orthodox Christian religion or belief and not because of the sexual orientation
of the customers. The disciplinary process is to Ms Ladele's; defriment, The
Respondent was aware of the reason for Ms Ladele's refugal, namely her
orthodox Christian belief and had been aware of this since] 2003 or 2004,
Ms Ladele has demonstrated a detriment on the grounds or religion or belief
and it is therefore for the Respondent to demonsirate undej Regulation 28
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We have heard evidence that the reason for the disciplinary process
was because Ms Ladele was in breach of the Dignity for All jpolicy. This is
@ situation where there is a conflict between two rights} or freedoms.
Mr Dingemans has argued that one right should not “trump” angther right. The
evidence before the Tribunal was that the Respondent, rightly, considersd
the importance of the right of the gay community not to bf? discriminated
against, but did not consider the right of Ms Ladele as a mamber of a religious
group into account. We have already referred fo the decision in Amicus in
relation to striking a balance between competing rights af paragraph 51 above.,

The burden has shifted to the Respondent and they have not H?roVed that they
did not commit the act and it is therefore the unanimous jydgment of the
Tribunal that the claim under number (15) succeeds.

The claim under number (18) is:
"(16) Falling to consider the Claimant for the position of additional

Superintendent Registrar when the incumibent, was; on maternity
leave in May 2007 because of her religious beliefs.”

The evidence, as set out in the investigation meeting (page 205) is that
Ms Mendez-Child stated that she would not accept Ms Ladele's application
should she wish to apply for the post. Ms Ladele has demonstrated a detriment.
She has ailso demonstrated from the svidence that a hypothetjcal comparator
would not have been treated in the same way. [n these cireumstances the
burden shifts and the Respondent cannot demonstrate that theyidid not commit
the act in the light of Ms Mendez-Child's admission that she commitied the act.
This complaint must therefore succeed.

The detriment at number (17) Is:

"(17) Failing to redress allegations that the Claimant was homophobic
and labelling and treating the Claimant as homophobic.”

Ms Ladele was described as homophobic by Dion and Viktoia. Mr Lynch,
Py his own admission, did not ask Dion and Viktoria to consider whether they
were discriminating against Ms Ladele on the grounds of her refigion or belief.
The Respondent throughout the evidence, made clear that they considered
Ms Ladele's refusal {o celebrate civil partnerships as discrimination by her on
the grounds of sexual arientation. Ms Ladele does not accept that she was
homophobic. She had a good work record in dealing with all the people with
whom she came into contact, She had regularly dealt with all members of the
lesbian, gay, bisexual and transsexual community with whom sheg had come into
contact except in connection with Civil Partnership arrangem?n‘ts. She has
I

suffered a detriment.

The Tribunal could infer that the defriment was on the grounds of her religion
or belief. Because of Mr Lynch's admission that he did not ask Dion and
Viktoria to consider whiether they were subjecting Ms Ladele tp discriminatory
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the Respondent cannot show that they did not cormmit thg act, in these
circumstances this complaint must succeed.,

The next complaint at (18) is:

"(18) Labelling the Claimant's letter to her manager of 18 April 2008 |

a free-standing incident of gross misconduct in Septembey 2007.”

The letter of 18 April (page 118) is Ms Ladele's letter to Ms Mendez-Child
to which the Respondent did not reply. Mr Daniegls referrad do the letter of
18 April 2006 in his summing up at page 254 of the bundle.g The letter of
18 April set auf Ms Ladele's position and the Respondent did not afford her
the courtesy of a reply. Ms Ladele told us In her evidence that Mr Daniels said
that the letter of 18 April was in itself an incident of gross misconduct. In cross-
examination Ms Round accepted that Mr Daniels had alleged atithe disciplinary
that sending the letter of 18 April was, a free-standing act of grgss miscenduct.

"In these circumstances Ms Ladele has demonstrated a detriment. The

Respondent is unable to demonstrate that this was not done onlthe grounds of
religion or belief not done. The complaint must succeed.

The next matter is:

*(19) Concluding in September 2007 that the Claimantjhad committed
gross misconduct.”

The Respondent did conclude thalt Ms Ladele had committed gross misconduct.
She has thus suffered a detriment. The reason for the Respondent’s conclusion
was that her religion or belief prevented Her from undertaking Givil Partnership
duties. The Tribural could, in these circumstances, draw an inference of
discrimination. The reason for the Respendent’'s conclusion of grpss misconduct
was because of Ms Ladele's religion or belief. The Respondent cannot show
that it did not commit the act and, in these circumstances, the claim must
succeed.

The next matter is:

"(20) Deciding in September 2007 that would unilatgrally vary the
Claimant's terms and conditions to require her to lunderiake civil
partnership duties.”

The Respondent did vary the Clalmant’'s terms and conditions pf employment.
The provisions of the Civil Partnership Act require that a registrar must be
designated. Ms Ladele did not agree to be designated as a qwil Partnership
Registrar. The Respondent took the decision unilaterally. Ms Ig;adele has thus
suffered a detriment. The Tribunal could infer that the detrimﬁnt was on the
grounds of her religion or belief. The Respondent cannot demopstrate that they
did not commit the act. They took the decision to designate Ms l";'radeie, together
with all their other Registrars, The claim must succeed.

The next detriment is:
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"(21) Taking the Claimant off the rota for Saturday weddings, excluding

2203694/2007

3

her from naming ceremonies, renewals of vows aqd commitment

ceremonies and not allocation off-side ceremonies

ecause of her

religious beliefs. Describing this (through Helen Mendez-Child) as

punishment for not doing civil partnerships, refusing to se
on courses.”

nd the Claimant

During the course of the hearing, statistics were produced shov\f.ing the amount

of overtime eamed in the years 2004/5 to 2007/8. The figures fo
as follows:

2004/5 £2,814.00
2005676 £1,56909.00
20086/7 £2,634.00
2007/8 £3,284,56

¢ Ms Ladele ars

From these figures the Tribunal cannot determine that Ms Ladele has suffered

a detriment in relation to the rota. We have the evidence, at

page 137, that

demonstrated that if Ms Ladele was the next on the azliocation list and there

was a Civil Partnership she missed a tum. The evidence bef

re the Tribunal

was sufficient for us to conclude that Ms Ladsle had sufferéd a detriment.

The figures do not demonstrate a clear diminution In eamings. 1
this head must fail.

The next detriment is:

“(22) Deciding not to investigate or address the Clal
about the way her treatment and reguest to accommods
beliefs had been addressed.”

he ciaim under

anl’s concerns
te her religious

Ms Ladele complained in her letter of 18 April 2006 (pages
Respondent disregarded this and did not reply to her |

118-119). The
tter. She has

demonstrated a detriment, Ms Ladele’s letier siates that her C@bmplaint arises
because of her religion or bellef. In these circumstances the Triq'unai could infer

that the Respondent had treated Ms Ladele less favourably on
her religion or belief, The Respondent has not demonstrated 1|
commit the act of discrimination. They concede they falled to in
these circumstances the complaint succeeds.

The next detriment is:

“(23) Failing to apply the Code of Conduct and dignity
the behaviour of the Claimant’s colleagues.”

the grounds of
hat they did not
rrestigate and in

for all policy to

The Respondent accepts that Dion and Viktorid were not disciplined under
the Dignity for All on the grounds of discrimination for religion or belief.
Mr Lynch concedes that he did not ask them to consider whether their
conduct could amount to discrimination. Ms Ladele has demonstrated a

20
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detriment, a hypothetical comparator who had made similar
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omplaint would

have had their complaints investigated and for these reasgns the burden

shifts. The Respondent cannot demonstrate that they did n
the claim must succeed.

The final detriment is:

"(24) Threatening in September 2007 to lerminate
contract If she did not perform civil partnership duties.”

On several occasions Ms Ladele was wamed that her cond
in her dismissal. This amounts to less favourable freatment.
terminate her contract arose directly from her refusal o

ot do this and

the Claimant's

ict could resuit
The threat to
perform Civil

Parinerships which was because of her orthodox Christian bgliefs. In these
circumstances the Tribunal could draw an inference of discrimination. The
Respondent accepts that the threat to terminate Ms Ladele’s employment was
because of her refusal to undertake Civil Parinership duties. This arose directly
from Ms Ladele’s orthodox Christian belief. The Respondent has failed to
discharge the burden of proof and the claim under this head musE succesd.

77 The Tribunal has also considered all of the detriments icomplained of
cumulatively. We are satisfied that Ms Ladele has shown that she was less
favourably treated on the grounds of her orthodox Christiap religion. The
Respondent has failed to discharge the burden that has passed to them
under regulation 29(2) of the Regulations.

78 in these circumstances and taking all matters together, it is ithe unanimous
judgment of the Tribunal that the Claimant direct discrimination jon the grounds
of religion and belief succeeds.

The Complaint of Indirect Discrimination on the Grounds of Religion and Belief

The Law

79  Regulation 3(1)b} of the Employment Equality (Religion or Beljef) Regulations
2003 provides:

*For the purposes of these Regulations a person 'A’ discriminates against
another person Bif.......

{(b) A applies to B a provision, criterion or practice which he
applles or would apply equally to persons not of the same religion
or belief as B but :

{i) which puts or would put persons of tkge same religion
or bellef as B at a particular disaﬁvantage when
compared with other persons; ;

P
:

(i)  which puts B at that disadvantage; and

27
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(i)  which A cannot show to be a proportipnate means of
achieving a legitimate aim.”

The Conclusion of the Tribunal on the Claim of Indirect Discrimination

80  Ms Ladele relles on two provisions, criteria or practices. Theffirst is that the
Respondent required that from the commencement of the Civit Partnership Act
2004 all Registrars should carry out civil parthership ceremonies jand registration
duties. The second is that no one who refused to carry out sqgme sex unions
could do Saturday wedding duties or officiate in external venues.

81 Mr Dingemans submits that aithough the promotion of the righﬁ of the leshian, |
gay, bisexual and transsexual communily was a legitimate aim it was not
proportionate because the acis were deliberately designed to] appeal to one _
section of the community over the rights of another. Mr Dingemnans argued B
that the rights of those holding an orthodox Christian belief were not afforded ?
the same value as the rights of the lesbian, gay, bisexual and transsexual
community. '

82 Mr A Lynch for the Respondent argued that the Tribunal must consider whether
the requirement that all marriage Registrars in the expressly?and obligatory
Registry service be involved in Civil Parinership arrangernen}s does impact
adversely and generally on a category of workers. His argument was that
Christianity is committed to respecting the uniqueness of mapriage and that
marriage is confined to couples of different genders but that Civil Partnerships
are not marriages. ' :

83 We reject Mr A Lynch's submission, The Tribunal had jevidence from.
Mrs Streste that there wers other instances of individuals erpployed by the
Respondent objecting to Civil Partnerships on religious grﬁ'unds. Theresa
Davies shared Ms Ladele’s beliefs, She was accommodated by a compromise
involving her demction. Fatima, a Muslim, left the Respondent's service,
because she felt unable to be involved in Civil Partnerships, Mrg Thatcher gave
evidence that her employer, Kent Count Council afforded hef an exemption
from registration as a Civil Partnership Registrar on the drounds of her
religious beliefs which are the same as Ms Ladele’s. We also heard of a
Registrar in Cornwall and a Muslim employee in the Londen Borough of
Newham who were accommadated.

84 In relation to the provision, criterion or practice that from the ¢ommencement
of the Civil Parinership Act 2004 all Registrars should carry out givil partnership
ceremonles and registration duties, the evidence is that the ﬁ?esponciant did -
require all registrars to carry out ¢ivit partnership duties. Thig put individuals
who held orthodox Christian beliefs that marriage was a union bgiween one man
and one woman for life fo the exclusion of all others at a disadvantage when
compared with other persons who did not hold that belief. The requirement was |
in direct opposition to Ms Ladele’s orthodox Christian beliefs and she was -
therefore put at a disadvantage. ‘

85 The central issue is whether the Respondent can show| the provision,
criterion or practice to be proportionate means of achieving a legitimate aim.
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Mr Dingemans accepts that although pursuit of a legitimate ajm is accepted
namely the promotion of the rights of the LGBT co’mmuniﬁy, it was not
proportionate to require that Ms Ladele became a civil partnership registrar.

Mr A Lynch argues that the legitimate aim is for the Respondent to provide an
effective Civil Partnership arrangement service as an employer and public
authority which is wholly committed to the promotion of equal opportunities and
to fighting discrimination. The parties are in direct opposition on the issue of
whether the legitimate aim is proportionate. Mr A Lynch argues that an
employer who did not accede to a request to be exempt from conducting mixed
race marriages would be acting proportionately and that proportionality is
not to be equated with the abllity to provide the service without fhe employee’s
services. He argues that where the employer is obliged to provide the service,
the employer is fully justified in faking the view that it cannot permit its employee
not to do so for discriminatory reasons. |

The Tribunal rejects this submission. The Respondent required Ms Ladele to
become a Civil Partnership Registrar, without consulting li'1er about the
appointment. We heard evidence that there was no diminution in the service
offered by reason of Ms Ladele not being undertaking ci;‘vil partnership
duties. Ms Mendez-Child and Ms Round confirmed in their evigence that they
could provide the first class service without Ms Ladele undertaking civif
partnership duties. The Respondent decided that the service if provided was
secular and that the rights of the lesbian, gay, bisexual and transsexual
community must be protected. In so acting, the Respondent topk no notice of
the rights of Ms Ladele by virtue of her orthodox Christian beliefi The Tribunal
was satisfied that the Respondent placed a value on the rights of the first
group which it did not afford to the protected section of the! community of
which Ms Ladele was a part. The Respondent placed a greater value on the
rights of the lesbian, gay, bisexual and transsexual community then it placed
on the rights of Ms Ladele as one holding an orthodox Christizn belief. The
Respondent showed no respect for Ms Ladele’s rights, Their acgion in applying
the first provision, criterion or practice was not a proportionate means of
achieving a legitimate aim. }‘

The same situation applies to the second provision, critenf)n- or practice

relied upon, namely, that no one who refused to carry out same sex unions
could do Safurday wedding duties or officiate in external venues. The Tribunal
has insufficient evidence to demonstrate that there was a provision, criterion or
practice that on one who refused to carry out same sex unions could do
Saturday wedding duties or officlate In external venues. The sfatistics set out
at paragraph 72 above do not demonstrate this. The complaint of indirect
discrimination in relation to the second provision, criterion oy practice must

therefore fail.

it is therefore the unanimous judgment of the Tribunal that the ¢laim of indirect
discrimination succeeds In relation anly to the provislon, critefion or practice
that all registrars should carry out civil partnership ceremonies and registration

duties.
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The Compilaint of Harassment

Case Number: | 2203694/2007

The Law

90

91

82

Regulation 5 of the Employment Equality (Religion or Belief) R?gu[atbns 2003
provides: '

‘(1) For the purposes of these Regulations & person ('A) subjects
another person (‘B') to harassment where, on the grounds of religion or
belief, A engages in unwanted conducted which has the purpose or effect
of A violating B's dignity or B creating an intimidating, hostile, degrading,
humiliating or offensive environment for B. '

{2}  Conduct shall be régarded as having the effect specified in
paragraph 1(a) or (b) only if, having regard to all the| circumstances
including, in particular, the perception of B it should {reasonably be
consldered as having that effect.” :

The acts of harassment that Ms Ladele complains of are set ou? al paragraphs
3247 of the Claimant's list of issues. A number of these duplicate the
detriments relied on in the complaint of direct discrimination. In nelation to those
which are duplicated, paragraphs 34-36 equate with paragraph 17, which we
have already found ic be to Ms Ladele's detriment. (See pazé"agraphs 62-64
above). Paragraph 38 equates to paragraph 21, (see paragraphs 71-72 above)
which is the one instance of detriment whick we have not found] Paragraph 41
equates with paragraph 15 {see paragraphs 57-59 above), angl paragraph 46
is not the subiject of these proceedings. These defriments at paqﬁgraphs 33-36,
and 41 amounted fo unwanted conduct. We deal with the: other matters

individually.
Paragraph 32 of the list of issues is that:

"32 At all times since the Claimant indicated her concems, Helen
Mendez-Child has refused to take her view seriously or tp listen to them
respectiully.”

Afl the evidence that the Tribunal has before it, is that Ms Mendez-Child did net
take Ms Ladele’s views seriously. From 2003 or 2004 when Ms Mendez-Child
was fold of Ms Ladele's concems, she told us that she thoughtithat Ms Ladele
would change her mind before the Act came into force and therefore took no
action. She also told us in cross-examination that had Ms Ladele raised a
different problem relating to sexual orientation, Ms Mendez-Child would not
have assumed that the person would change their mind. Ms Mendez-Child told
us that because registration is & secular service no account shquld be taken of
religious belief. When questiohed about whether Ms Ladele should have the
benefit of the Dignity at Work Policy Ms Mendez-Child told us that that should
not be the case if the faith discriminates against other people. She said that she
could not allow one person to use their belief as that was discriminating against
other people, Later, in cross-examination Ms Mendez-Child told lus:

30
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"l equatle the Claimant's belief as discrimination. | don't believe she was
being discriminated against and she has not produced any evidence

of it.”

Ms Mendez-Child also agreed that there was no discussion about

accommodating Ms Ladele’s religious belief. This was repeated
Child in the disciplinary hearing at page 252m.

| Paragraph 33 of the list of issues is that;

by Ms Mendez-

38 Colieagues complained (see paragraph 6 of e grounds of

resistance annexed to ET3) but the Claimant's posit
partnerships was an act of victimisation towards them
sexual orientation.”

on on several
cause of their

This relates to the complaints made by Dion and Viktoria w-hicb have already

been set out, The Tribunal is satisfied that this conduct was unw

Paragraph 37 states:

37  Helen Mendez-Child indicated in May 2006

anted.

in  subsequent

appraisals that everyone in the Department hated the Claimant and that

no one wanted to work with her because of har views.”

There is no evidence that Ms Mendez-Child Indicated thal gveryone in the

Depariment hated the Claimant. This allegation cannot amount t

Paragraph 39 states:

0 harassment,

"39  The Respondent failed to protect the Claimant from the ridicuie
and abuse of her colleagues on occaslons such as the staff meeting of
3 November 2006, and indeed, encourage such ridicule by acting in the

marner particularised below.”

The staff meeting in fact took place on 2 November. We have al

eady made our

findings in relation to this that thers is no evidence of ridicule or encouragement
to ridicule and this matter cannot, as stated, amount to an act of harassment,

Paragraph 40 siates:

*40  The Respondent shared detalls of its actions and p
with other staff in breach of the Claimant’s right of conf
the Respondent’s confidentiality policy.”

This equates with paragraph 14 in the direct discrimination
we have already found that this does amount 1o a detriment.
confidentiality amounted to unwanted conduct. '

roposed actions

identiality under

complaint and
The breach of

Paragraph 42 equates to paragraph 16 of the list of issues (see E‘paragraphs 860-

81 above). Failing io consider Ms Ladele for a matemity leave p
of her religious beliefs amounted to unwanted conduct.

31
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Paragraph 43 states:

43  The Claimant was excluded from  social and professional
workplace conversations.” :

The Tribunal has heard much about the Claimant being sent to Coventry’. We
have insufficient evidence to make a clear finding that this amounted to a
detriment or harassment. T

The satme situation applies to paragraph 44 which reads:

44 The Claimant's colleagties refused to work with the Claimant on
wedding ceremonies.” .

Paragraph 45 states:
46 Helen Mendez-Child asked In an Interview in June 2007 how they
would feel working with people who were homophobic bejng a reference
to the Claimant.”

This is a reference to an Inferview of Mr B Atsebaha who came to give evidence

and denied that any such cormient had been made.. In theseicircumstances

this cannot amount to harassment.

The final issue is paragraph 47 which states:

‘47  The Respondent required the Claimant to producF her passport
and address identification before processing her pay increase on
21 December 2007 rotwithstanding that she had been paid by the
Respondent for over 16 years.”

The Tribunal understands that this is not presently before tpe Tribunal in
these proceedings because it is the subject of the appeal. In these
circumstances the Tribunal does not address this issue.

The issue is therefore whether those matiers which have beg’n proved and
which amount to unwanted conduct, is that the issues at paragraphs 32-36,
and 40-42, have theeffect of violating Ms Ladele’s dignity.g;r creating an
intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or offensive environmfnt.

Mr Dingemans submitted that there was harassment within the meaning of
the Reguiations and that the Responderit had led, encourageq and tolerated
the warst sort of {reaiment of Ms Ladele because she held an orthodox Christian
belief. Mr A Lynch argued that Ms Ladele had misunderstocd and misperceived
the situation as set out in his skeleton argument.

The Tribunal is in no doubt that Ms Ladels did not misunderstoqd the situation.
The complaints at issue 32 of failure to take Ms Ladele’s view seriously, the
complaints at issues 33 to 36 in relation to allegations of discrignination on the
grounds of sexual orlentation towards the Claimant, issue 40 in relation to

32
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breach of confidentiality, issue 41 in subjecting the Claimant tq a disciplinary
process for discrimination on the grounds of sexual orientation and issue 42
in failing 1o consider the Claimant for the additional Superinter}dent Registrar
are all unwanted conduct. These acts disregarded and displayed no respect
for Ms L.adele's genuinely held religious beliefs. As such they amount to a
violation of Ms Ladele’s dignity and created an intimidating, hostile, degrading,
hurniliating or offensive environment for her on the grounds
or belief. In relation to these matters it Is the unanimous judgment of the
Tribunal that the complaint of harassment succeeds.
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